
 

  
 
 
The Chemung County Library District, with 
neighborhood libraries in Big Flats, the 
Bookmobile, Elmira, Horseheads, Van Etten, 
West Elmira, and on the web at 
www.ccld.lib.ny.us 

 

 

Agenda 
 

The September 2015 meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Chemung County Library District 
will be held on Thursday, September 17, 2015 at 6:00 pm at the Steele Memorial Library, 101 
E. Church St. Elmira, NY 14901.  The agenda for the meeting is listed below.  If you are 
unable to attend, please inform Mr. Roberts (271-9625), Mrs. Santulli (733-8607), or Mr. Shaw 
(733-8611).   
 
1.  Call to order  
2.  Pledge of allegiance 
3.  Approval of minutes (document #2015-49)   
4.  Treasurer’s report 
 a) Financial report (document #2015-50) 
 b)  Report of Unpaid Bills Detail (document #2014-51) 
6.  Correspondence  
7.  President’s report. 
 Consent Item- Official Approval of the changes to the Legislation..  
 Resolved that the CCLD Board of Trustees approve changes to 2005, Chapter 380,  
 S5321/A8116  Sponsors: Sen. Winner; A.M. O'Hara. Establishment of the Chemung 
 County Library District as submitted.  
8.  Director’s Report.   
9.  Committee reports:   

a)  Executive Committee (Roberts)  
 1)  Report of the Committee meeting (document #2014-52) 
b)  Budget & Finance Committee (Schamel) 
 1)  Report of the Committee meeting (document #2014-53) 

 c)  Building & Grounds Committee (Muldoon) 
 1)  Report of the Committee meeting  (document #2014-54) 
d) Personnel Committee (Kappanadze)  
Consent Items: Approval of Personnel Actions (Appendix C).  
Resolved that the CCLD Board of Trustees approve Personnel actions as submitted. 

10. Call for Executive Session 
11.  Old business   
12.  New business 
 a) Fundraising ideas (Kappanadze) 
13.  Period for public expression  
14.  Adjournment  

http://www.ccld.lib.ny.us/


(Minutes of the AUGUST 2015 meeting of the Chemung County Library District Board of 
Trustees. Document #2015-49) 
 
The meeting was called to order at 6:00pm by Vice-President Marge Kappanadze. Present were Pat 
Silvernail, Ann Hayes, Georgia Reynolds, Bonnie Chollet, Rachel Dworkin, Tim Blandford, Richard 
Roberts and Jessica Roberts. Excused:  John Schamel, Juan Jones, Phyllis Rogan, Jim Hare and 
Michael Muldoon. Also present were Ron Shaw, the Library District’s Director and Joan Santulli, the 
Library District’s Administrative Assistant. 
 
Minutes.  The minutes of the July 2015 meeting (Document #2015-43) were presented for board 
review. The minutes were approved as submitted in writing by unanimous consent.   
 
Financial  Report. The July 31, 2015 Financial Report (Document #2015-44) was presented for 
board review.  By unanimous consent the July 31, 2015 Financial Report was approved as distributed 
and will be filed for audit.   
 
Report of Unpaid Bills (Document #2015-45). Due to the lack of a quorum at the Executive 
Committee meeting, all invoices for the month must be approved by the board. By unanimous 
consent, the board authorizes the payment of the unpaid bills dated 8/5/15 – General Fund $30,626.63 
and the unpaid bills dated 8/12/15 – General Fund $70,254.47 and Grant Fund $2,372.97 as 
distributed.   

 
Correspondence.   Mr. Shaw reported that Assistant Counsel Rubin from Gov. Cuomo’s office 
called to confirm that CCLD was in agreement with the changes to the Legislation.  There is no 
estimate on when it will be signed by the Governor.   

 
President’s Report.   
CONSENT ITEM: 

Recognition of Mary Welles Mooers Smith.  Mr. Roberts moved, seconded by Mr. Blandford 
to adopt the following Resolution:  Unanimously approved -- Resolved that the CCLD Board 
of Trustees recognize Ms. Smith as follows: 
 
Mary was a delightful person full of enthusiasm and spent her life being involved with people 
and our community.  She was a supporter of our libraries long before we became a District.  
Mary was a familiar sight at the Steele Memorial Library and was an active member of the 
Steele Friends and after we became a District she was part of the CCLD Friends. The book 
sale was her favorite event of the year and she enlisted the help of her son Ross and her 
grandchildren and made it sort of a family affair.  Her love of our libraries continued through 
her son Denny who was a CCLD Board member and served as President and her grandson 
Matthias who is on the Friends of CCLD Board. Libraries depend on the support of people 
like Mary and her efforts on behalf of CCLD will be felt long into the future. She will be 
missed. 
 

Director’s Report.    
CONSENT ITEM: Approval of Fall/Winter 2015-2016 hours.  Resolved by Ms. Dworkin, seconded 
by Ms. Roberts that the CCLD Board of Trustees approves the Fall/Winter 2015-16 hours as 
submitted in writing. VOTE: Unanimously Approved. 
 
 
 
 



Mr. Shaw discussed the following: 
CCLD Issues. Stats were given for the online databases Freegal, Transparent Languages and Zinio, as 
well as IndiFlix and Lynda.com.  With the wireless being shut off during off hours, there have been 
no complaints by patrons.  Complaints regarding the Promenade near Steele have dropped 
significantly as well. 
Programs. He received a lot of good feedback from the Theatre Camp held at Steele. The Summer 
Reading Club program had 1,352 participants and the final party at Eldridge Park was a success with 
250 in attendance. The Summer Concert Series had 339 total attendance for 5 concerts.  September is 
National Library Card Sign-up month. Library Lovers Baskets funded by the Marketing Committee 
are being given away at each branch and a drawing will be held for one patron district-wide to win a 
Samsung Galaxy tablet.  A survey is also being posted on the website to get patron input and 
knowledge of online databases and upcoming programs.  
 
The Director's Report (Appendix A) and the CCLD Staff Reports (Appendix B) for last month were 
submitted in writing to the board.  

Executive Committee.  The report of the Executive Committee was presented in writing to the board 
(Document #2015-46). Nothing new to report.  
 

Budget & Finance Committee.  The report of the Budget & Finance Committee meeting was 
presented in writing to the board (Document #2015-47). Nothing new to report. 
CONSENT ITEM: Approval of the CCLD proposed budget for 2016.  Resolved by Ms. Reynolds, 
seconded by Ms. Kappanadze that the CCLD Board of Trustees approve the 2016 Budget as 
submitted in writing to the board.  VOTE:  Unanimously Approved.  
 
Buildings & Grounds Committee. The report of the Buildings & Grounds Committee meeting was 
presented in writing to the board (Document #2015-48). Ms. Hayes reported the following: Elevator 
project at Steele has been delayed and is expected to begin September 14th – a 4 week project with 
the elevator being totally out of order for approximately 2 ½ of those weeks.  Chiller Project at Steele 
– most of the paperwork has been completed for the Construction grant.  This year there is a new 
requirement to comply with MWBE specs. CCLD has to show that a good faith effort has been made 
to comply with this requirement. It appears as though CCLD will be eligible to receive $101,000 
from the State Construction funds and $150,000 from the State’s Economic Development Assistance 
Program Grant.  Ms. Chollet moved, seconded by Ms. Reynolds to give Director Ron Shaw the legal 
authority to submit the Chiller project requests for funding from various government organizations.  
VOTE: Unanimously Approved. Other pending issues include the Taitem Energy Audit, Bathroom 
Project at the Steele Library, Dark Fiber being installed by STLS and a tree needing trimming at the 
Big Flats Library.  
 
Personnel Committee.  Ms. Kappanadze stated that the Committee is meeting on a regular basis and 
is looking to review the contract between the board and the Director to be sure it is on par with other 
organizations.   
CONSENT ITEM – Approval of Personnel Actions. (Appendix C). Ms. Dworkin moved, seconded 
by Mr. Blandford to approve the Personnel Actions as submitted to the board.  VOTE: Unanimously 
Approved.   
 
It was reported that two new replacement Library Pages have been hired, two candidates have been 
interviewed for the MakerSpace Clerk position.  Mr. Shaw is requesting that authorization be given to 
hire a replacement for a Library Page who has been off on disability leave and has indicated that she 
will not return to her position.  Ms. Reynolds moved, seconded by Ms. Hayes to authorize filling this 
position upon receipt of a formal resignation in writing.  VOTE: Unanimously Approved.  



 
Mr. Shaw reported that based on Board guidance, job descriptions for staff members have been 
completed, have been sent to supervisors to be reviewed by staff and signed and returned. The Civil 
Service Commission is reviewing the job descriptions.  Still awaiting completion are job descriptions 
for Librarian 1 (LH), Network Specialist and Administrative Assistant.  
 
Old Business. Discussion of continued 24/7 wireless access – the board felt there is no reason to 
change this at this time.  
 
Public Expression.  None 
 
New Business.  None 
 
 
 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:52pm. The next regular meeting of the board will be held on 
Thursday, September 17th, 2015 at 6:00pm at the Steele Memorial Library, 101 East Church Street, 
Elmira, New York. 

















Document #2015-52 
 
Report of the September 2nd, 2015 meeting of the Executive Committee of the 
Chemung County Library District:   
 
Attending the meeting from the Executive Committee were Richard Roberts, Rachel Dworkin, 
Marge Kappanadze and Georgia Reynolds and Ronald Shaw and Joan Santulli, CCLD management.  
Other board members in attendance were Jim Hare, Ann Hayes, Pat Silvernail and Tim Blandford. 
The meeting opened at 6:09pm.   
 
UNPAID BILLS:  Ms. Dworkin moved, seconded by Ms. Hayes to approve the Unpaid Bill lists 
dated September 2, 2015 as follows:  General Fund - $22,257.02 and Grant Fund - $2,412.10. 
VOTE: Unanimously Approved.  
 
President’s Report.  Mr. Roberts stated that the plaque commemorating Earle Catlin has not yet been 
installed at the Horseheads Library.  Mr. Hare moved, seconded by Ms. Hayes to give permission to 
hire an outside contractor to install the plaque should the County crews not be able to do so by the 
date of the dedication of the Earle R. Catlin Meeting Room – October 12, 2015.  VOTE: 
Unanimously Approved.  
 
Director’s Report. Mr. Shaw reported the following: 

o The nominee that CCLD sent in for the Library Advocacy Award (Ann Thurber) being given 
by STLS was not a winner.  STLS is considering adding an Outstanding Volunteer Award in 
2016 for which CCLD will again nominate Ms. Thurber.  

o CCLD has won STLS’s Promotional Video Award again this year – 3 out of the last 4 years.  
o There is no word on the approval of the changes to the Legislation. 
o September is Library Card Sign Up Month 
o The Board of Elections has been sent the wording for the budget proposal to be included on 

the ballot for the November 2015 election. 
o Job Descriptions – Mr. Shaw will be meeting with civil service regarding job descriptions.  
o A survey has been placed on the website for patrons to fill out.  It will be used to glean from 

patron’s comments and survey their visits to the library.  
o Flu Shot Clinic – has been scheduled for all staff and our regular volunteers for September 

28th from 12 – 2pm at a reduced rate.  Vouchers are available for those who cannot make that 
date.  Board members are included under volunteers and the cost is $27.00. Contact Ms. 
Santulli if you are interested.  

 
Ms. Silvernail was asking about Corning Library sending emails to patrons each week with 
upcoming programs.  Mr. Shaw stated that CCLD had considered this, but decided that patrons do 
not want to be bombarded with emails. Instead CCLD sends a monthly newsletter to interested 
patrons.  
 
Regarding making a case to the public about approving the 2016 budget – Mr. Shaw will make his 
appearances at each library during the month of October and board members are encouraged to write 
Letters to the Editor to be included on a regular basis prior to the election.   
 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 6:30pm.  The next meeting of the Executive Committee of the Chemung 
County Library District will be held on Wednesday, October 7th, 2015 at 6pm in the Petrie 
Conference Room of the Steele Memorial Library.   
 



Document #2015-53 
 
Report of the September 9th, 2015 meeting of the Budget & Finance Committee of the 
Chemung County Library District.  
 
Attending the meeting were CCLD board members Georgia Reynolds, Jack Schamel and Marge 
Kappanadze. Also attending was Joan Santulli and Ron Shaw, CCLD Administration.  The 
meeting opened at 8:00am.  
 
Ms. Santulli presented the August 31st, 2015 Financial Report to the Committee. The Report will 
be forwarded to the full CCLD board for its consideration.  
 
Ms. Santulli presented the 9/9/15 Unpaid Bills Detail for the General Fund bills totaling 
$86,731.41. The list includes the third quarter payments to Chemung County for Debt Service 
and to STLS for Cost Share. It also includes an invoice for the purchase of 24 computers as part 
of the budgeted 5 year replacement plan. The Unpaid Bills Detail will be forwarded to the full 
CCLD board for its consideration.  
 
Mr. Shaw reported receipt of an email from the Steele Memorial Foundation to the Big Flats 
Library Advocates which delineated the Advocates funding being held by the Foundation from 
2008 to present.  
 
Ms. Kappanadze again reinforced the need for the Library District to be looking into alternative 
funding sources, i.e. event fundraising, person-to-person requests for funds, outsourcing, as well 
as a “donate” button on the web page.  Ms. Santulli reported that CCLD’s PayPal Account has 
been opened and staff is working on the specifics of how it will work on our website. Ms. 
Kappanadze requested that a discussion on fundraising be placed on the agenda for the 
September board meeting.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:16am.  The next meeting of the Budget & Finance Committee will 
be held on Wednesday, October 14th, 2015 at 8:00am in the Petrie Conference Room of the 
Steele Memorial Library.   



Document #2015-54 
 
Report of the September 2nd, 2015 meeting of the Buildings & Grounds Committee of the Chemung 
County Library District 
 
The meeting opened at 5:35pm. Present were Mr. Hare, Ms. Hayes and Mr. Roberts. Also attending were 
Joan Santulli and Ron Shaw, CCLD Management.   
 
The Committee received reports on the following: 

o Elevator Project at Steele.  The project has been delayed and will begin September 14th.  Signs have 
already been posted in the building and the press release has been sent out.  It is expected that the 
elevator will be completely out of service for about 2 ½ weeks.  

o Bathroom Project at the Steele Library – a 2015 project application.  Still waiting the funding that 
has been approved.  

o Chiller Project at the Steele Library – a 2016 project application.  Two new estimates have been 
requested from Kimble, Inc. and Trane.  The grant information has been sent to DASNY and STLS 
has filed the paperwork with the State for Construction funding. Any funds left over from the project 
may be utilized for energy upgrades.   

o Taitem Energy Audit. CCLD is still waiting to hear from NYSERDA. 
o West Elmira Library.  Regarding the tree in front of the library, the Committee will not 

discuss it any further and it should be removed from the agenda.  
o Dark Fiber. Nothing new to report 
o Big Flats Library.  CCLD has been notified that the water meter will be replaced.  
o Worker’s Comp Inspection. An inspector completed her inspection today and noted no 

signifcant deficienes.  
 

 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 5:55pm.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 The next regular meeting of the Buildings & Grounds Committee will be held on Wednesday, October 7th, 
2015 at 5:30pm in the Petrie Conference Room at the Steele Memorial Library. 
 


	Agenda 2015-9
	Document 2015-49
	Document 2015-50
	Document 2015-51
	Document 2015-52
	Document 2015-53
	Document 2015-54

